City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SCL-1013

For Ancillary Map Tool Replacement Project
Addendum 

ANSWERS on 02/03/2011

The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SCL-1013, titled Ancillary Map Tool Replacement Project, released on December 17, 2010.  The proposal due date has been updated to February 23, 2010 @ 4:00 pm.  Pre-proposal conference #2 is scheduled on 02/01/11 @ 9:30 am.  The due date for Questions has been updated to 02/08/11 @ 2:00 pm.  A revised schedule is posted below.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a bid/proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	ITB/RFP Revisions and or Clarifications

	1
	01/28/11
	02/01/11
	What system manages the Loadflow TLM data?  Is “Loadflow” the name of your EA application or do you use SynerGEE, CYME, or another application?
	The existing TLM/NLM/Loadflow system is 100% custom code, with data stored in an Oracle 8.1.


	

	2
	01/28/11
	02/01/11
	Page one of the NetGIS current state diagram refers to XFMR but this item isn’t defined in the RFP, could you explain?  What system manages this data? 

	The XFMR database stores (in Oracle 8.1) asset information (history) about major equipment (e.g. transformers) and facilities (e.g. poles, vaults).  There is no direct tie between the existing Ancillary Map Tools and the XFMR database, and it is not anticipated that there will be any direct ties to the XFMR database in the new Ancillary Map Tools.  It is included in Attachment #4 (NetGIS migration diagram) for information only, because of its direct ties to the NetGIS database. 

	

	3
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Regarding attachment #4 -  NetGIS Migration diagrams:  

Page one references DAMS and Landbase in the first database bubble.  DAMS doesn’t house the landbase, this is managed by SPU and used by City Light.  Is this database correctly notated?
	The current Ancillary Map Tools uses the CGCB as it is stored in DAMS.  CGDB data is pushed from SPU’s GIS to SCL’s GIS. DAMS’ GIS data is stored in ESRI’s arc/info 9.1 format, not a RDBMS.  It is anticipated that the future AMT will derive CGDB data directly from SPU, as show in the NetGIS Future State (Attachment #4, page 2)
	

	4
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Regarding attachment #4 -  NetGIS Migration diagrams:  

The Red TO BE REPLACED bubble on page 1 references DAMSview and NetGIS together.  DAMSview was not included in the Glossary, but I know this is an internet based viewing tool, it isn’t the actual data regarding the non-radial network system.  Was this supposed to be just DAMS or in fact DAMSview?  Are the Ancillary map tools defined and used by end users within DAMSview and NetGIS or please clarify?\
	The current name for the Ancillary Map Tools as it is presented to the user is “DAMSView & NetGIS”.  It is only a name.  Please refer to the definition of “Ancillary Map Tools“ in Attachment #3 (glossary) for more detail.  For technical specs, please refer to Attachment #5 (NetGIS tech specs). 
	

	5
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Regarding attachment #4 -  NetGIS Migration diagrams:

 How does the NetGIS AutoCAD based asset information and the DAMS Esri data get combined?  

The non-radial GIS information  referenced in the diagrams is not visible.


	SCL’s current Ancillary Map Tools use ESRI’s arc/info 9.1, reading NetGIS data from the NetGIS Oracle Spatial data store & CGDB data from SCL’s DAMS data store (ESRI’s arc/info 9.1), which derives CGDB data from SPU’s GIS.
	

	6
	
	01/28/11
	Regarding attachment #4 -  NetGIS Migration diagrams
Page 1 refers to the BMDE is “In Development”, if there is going to be a new combined editor in the future, why is this effort going on if it could be replaced in the upcoming phases?


	The BMDE development currently underway will move BMDE-related functionality into the NetGIS Editor which is already in production.
	

	7
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Within the Technical and Functional Requirements Spreadsheet Tab 2 - 6.7 is asking us to “Identify approach to developing a complete and comprehensive set of reliability testing period.”  While Section 6.7 of the RFP states: “After the successful completion of the acceptance test period, there shall be a thirty (30) day reliability test period during which the newly installed system shall be in production and its performance monitored for functionality and system compatibility and integration by end users, super-users and SCL IT staff.  During this period, the system must perform fully without degradation of any kind in order for the acceptance test to be satisfied.  If any major defects or numerous minor defects are discovered, the reliability test period shall be terminated and the Proposer shall resolve any and all issues. Once all issues have been addressed, the Proposer shall recommence the acceptance test process from the beginning.”

Would SCL provide clarification on what is required for a response in the spreadsheet?

Would SCL clarify what stage of the process begins again if “during the reliability test period any major defects or numerous minor defects are discovered”.  Does the Acceptance Test Period (6.5) start again or the Reliability Test Period (6.7)? 


	See response to Question #24.

Per last sentence in Section 6.7, “  the Proposer shall recommence the acceptance test process from the beginning.”


	CORRECTION:   Technical & Functional Spec - Section 6.7 should read:  

 "Identify approach to developing a complete and comprehensive reliability testing period plan."

	8
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	What is the relationship between LoadFlow and NetGIS?  There is no connection between these databases in the future state diagram.
	The interface shown in the NetGIS Current State (see Attachment #4, page 1) is intended to indicate functionality in our existing Ancillary Map Tools that retrieves data from the Loadflow database and writes them to the NetGIS database.  It is not a requirement of the AMT Replacement Solution that this data be redundantly stored in NetGIS.  Therefore, NetGIS future state (attachment #4, page 2) shows a line connecting the “NEW AMT” directly to the Loadflow data store rather than through an interface between the NetGIS data store and the Loadflow data store.  Either approach would be acceptable.
	

	9
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Can we get a functional specification document for the Ancillary map tools? The other applications are explained in the user documentation but not the Map Tools.
	If requested, we can provide the end user documentation originally developed at the time the existing Ancillary Map Tools were moved to production.  As with Attachment #8, this documentation cannot be considered current or complete.   It is also important to note that, the current Ancillary Map Tools is NOT one of the “… other NetGIS component applications” referred to in section 6.1.4 of the RFP.  
	Added Clarification:  User Documentation provided upon request and receipt of the City’s NDA.  


	10
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Page 2 of 28 states, “City Light has taken on a technical migration project which seeks to move the NetGIS technology environment from an obsolete, custom coded, legacy application environment, enhancing it into a more sustainable, more flexible, more out-of-the-box, application environment that better meets the business needs.  To that end, work is currently underway to replace the NetGIS database along with the NetGIS editor.” 

Can SCL provide information on the target database platform for the replacement of the NetGIS database?


	As stated in Attachment #5 (Tech Specs), the platform for the NetGIS is and will continue to be Oracle Spatial.
	

	11
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	Page 2 or 28 states, “Replacement of the existing NetGIS Ancillary Map Tools functionality with currently supported Software Solution represents the next phase of the technical migration process.”

Would SCL provide a demonstration of the existing Ancillary Map Tools?

What is the base platform of the current Ancillary Map Tools?


	No.

The current Ancillary Map Tools resides on top of DAMSVIEW, a map viewer. DAMSVIEW displays modeled NetGIS data and CGDB GIS data in ESRI’s arc/info 9.1 format. 

	

	12
	01/11/11
	01/28/11
	In Attachment #3 – Glossary of Terms, the description of BMDE, VDDE, and NetGIS reference a “new NetGIS Editor, scheduled to be moved to production in the 1st quarter of 2011.”  

Would SCL provide a description of the platform utilized for this new editor and provide a status of the project?


	NetGIS, as described in Attachment #5 (tech specs), is currently in production.  Migration of existing VDDE & BMDE functionality and data are currently scheduled be completed in 1st quarter 2011.
	

	13
	01/21/11
	01/21/11
	
	
	REVISION:  The revised Non Disclosure Agreement (NDA) is embedded below. 


[image: image1.emf]Non Disclosure  Agreement_final 012010.doc




	14
	01/18/11
	01/18/11
	
	
	REVISION:  The following schedule has been revised as follows:

SCHEDULE OF EVENTS & DATE & TIME

· RFP RELEASE  12/17/10 (remains unchanged)

· Pre-proposal Conference #2:  02/01/11 @ 9:30 am.  (The City Purchasing Office, 700 5th Avenue, Seattle -  Floor 41, Suite 4105)

· Deadline for Questions:  02/08/11 @ 2:00 pm

· Sealed Proposals Due to the City:  02/23/11 @ 4:00 pm (PT)

· Proposal Evaluations:  Week of 02/28/11

· At the option of the City – Demonstrations:  Week of 03/14/11

· Announcement of successful proposer:  Week of 03/28/11



	15
	01/05/11
	01/11/11
	
	
	The City will release a new NDA and extend the dates and times for the Due Date for the following events:

1. Deadline for Questions

2. Sealed Proposals Due Date 

3. Proposal Evaluation

4. Demonstrations &

5. Announcement of Successful Proposer

The City will also add another Preproposal conference after the release of Attachment #6 – Sample Maps.



	16
	12/21/2010
	12/22/2010
	We understand that a Non-Disclosure Agreement is required to be executed and returned to the City prior to receiving certain materials from the City that may be required to provide a proposal.  Can we rely on a Non-Disclosure Agreement that we might have executed for the City in the past?
	No
	

	17
	01/05/11
	01/05/11
	What triggers the start of the 120 day trial period? Is it contract signature?


	Yes, 120 days begins when the contract is executed.  For the implementation portion, the City will negotiate an acceptance period & required remedies.

	

	18
	01/05/11
	01/05/11
	What terms and conditions are bounded by the 5 year term of the agreement? (i.e. the License is perpetual, support is 1 year; terms, conditions and warranties survive the end of the contract, so what exactly expires at the end of the 5 year contract?  If nothing expires, how is this 5 year timeframe relevant to the City?


	This is intended as a blanket contract.  At the option of the City, it allows the City to purchase additional support, licenses or other services, within the contract expansion clause during this time period without a new solicitation.  The term also allows for an extension of two additional years, at the option of the City, making the contract term for a total of 7 years.   
	

	19
	01/05/11
	01/05/11
	Software Upgrades and Enhancements (Section 11) It is the policy of both Autodesk and CaseIntel to provide Software Upgrades and Enhancements to customers with a current Software Support Contract. Does this requirement, in conjunction with the requested 5 year term mean that the proposal pricing should cover 5 years of software support or would the City be contracting for Software Support on an annual basis after the end of year 1?


	The City is requesting firm pricing for five years, See Pricing Response.  Although the City requests pricing for 5 years, the City would exercise the option to obtain support on an annual basis.


	

	20
	01/05/11
	01/05/11
	What is the definition of software maintenance?  Currently, much of the Autodesk software is under software maintenance (subscription) already.  Is software maintenance to be considered only the software that is not currently on subscription?


	a. Software Maintenance is defined in 6.11 of the RFP.  

b. No. For all of the Software purchased from the Vendor.


	

	21
	01/05/11
	
	Ownership of Deliverables (Section 15) If the vendor determines that it would like to incorporate functionality configurations or customizations produced under this contract into the base product, will the City release exclusive ownership rights as specified in Sections 15 and 37? What is the process to secure release of rights from the City?


	The City may be willing to negotiate depending on the solution offered by the successful Vendor.   
	

	22
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Section 6.10 on training references 10 end users and 5 super users.  Is that the number of people who will be using the system?
	There are many more that will be using the map products generated by this system, but we do not anticipate significant change in the number of users directly interacting with the system.
	

	23
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Regarding p.22, Section. 6, Mandatory Technical and Functional Requirements.

Should these responses be embedded in the spreadsheet?
	Yes, the City expects to receive the technical and functional form provided in the RFP, in the Vendor’s proposal package.
	

	24
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Sec 2.1 Functional Objectives - 

Would you clearly define the Functional Response you are expecting on the Technical/Function Response.
	The City is looking for the Vendor to clarify whether or not their proposed solution meets the requirements.  If so, how: out-of-the-box, configured out-of-the-box, or through a customization.  The City is also looking for time/scope estimates for each proposed configuration/customization.
	

	25
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Section 6.7 of the Technical/Function Response does not seem to match the same section of the RFP.
	
	CORRECTION:   Technical & Functional Spec - Section 6.7 should read:

 "Identify approach to developing a complete and comprehensive reliability testing period plan."  



	26
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Regarding Attachment 4, NetGIS Migration diagrams. Should there be double arrows between NEDMS and the NetGIS Editor?  How are these two linked?
	There should not be arrows between the two.

NEDMS manages the launching of tools and publishing of maps, similar to the NetGIS Editor on the same diagram. (see attachment #8 and Section 6, specifically 6.1 for NEDMS specs; please note this attachment is not current and was included to provide a sense of what NEDMS does and how NEDMS works).
	

	27
	01/06/11
	
	Regarding Attachment 5, NetGIS Technical Specifications.

Is there data available from Oracle Spatial?
	The data is stored in the NetGIS database.  Because the database structure does not belong to the City, the City cannot provide this information.  The successful vendor may need to enter into an agreement with the owner of the database.
	

	28
	01/06/11
	
	Regarding Attachment 5.

Do you list the schema?
	Pending 
	

	29
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Regarding Attachment 6, Sample Maps.

How will these be delivered?
	A pdf version of the documents will be sent (alternatively, documents can be sent using ftp).
	

	30
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Will the Addendum be emailed to vendors?
	An email will be sent when the addendum has been posted to the web site.
	

	31
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Will the proposal and questions due dates extended?  To what?
	Yes.  Pending the release of the NDA.
	

	32
	01/06/11
	01/06/11
	Were the decision makers present?
	Some of the decision makers were present.
	

	33
	01/06/11
	
	Can a list of the decision makers be published/provided?
	Yes.  The Evaluation Team consists of staff from Network Mapping (the Business Unit/End Users), IT and Project Management Groups. 
	

	34
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Regarding item #9; is there a document available?
	The end user documentation is available in pdf format.  Please request it through Carmalinda.
NOTE: There are screen shots within this document that contain confidential information. Therefore a signed NonDisclosure Agreement (NDA) is required before receiving it.  If the recipient has already provided a signed NDA for the RFP’s sample map attachment, a second NDA is not required.  In either case, the contents of this document are subject to the NDA.  
	

	35
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Regarding line #27; who is the owner of the database?
	CaseIntel 
	

	36
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Is the schema for the database available?
	Pending
	

	37
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Are the maps a representative sample?  
	Yes, the sample maps are representative of our current maps.
	

	38
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Will these be the only maps expected to be displayed for the demonstration?
	Demonstrations are intended to show us the functionality as well as the look and feel of the proposed solution.  SCL will not be providing data for the demonstration.  It is anticipated that the vendor will use mocked-up data in demonstrating the proposed solution.  It is not required that the mocked-up data match precisely the particulars of SCL’s Network Distribution System.
	

	39
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	What is the difference between the two Feeder 1351 sample maps?
	Good question.  They both have the same map title.  One map is the Load flow Map for Feeder 1351.  The Loadflow map is the one with the red pencil notes on the sides, and concurrently maps both the NetGIS (black lines) and the Loadflow (green lines and attributes) topologies.  The second map is the actual Feeder Map for Feeder 1351, mapping only the NetGIS topology.  It is required that the new Ancillary Map Tools be able to generate both Loadflow maps (for both primary and secondary circuits) and Feeder Maps.
	

	40
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Comment on the fact that the secondary map is not to scale as well as the note, ‘Map not generated from GIS’
	Currently the Secondary Map is not generated out of the NetGIS data, but is separately maintained in AutoCAD.  As part of this RFP, we expect secondary maps will be generated through the new Ancillary Map Tools out of NetGIS data, and emulating the look and feel of the sample Feeder and Loadflow maps that were generated out of our existing Ancillary Map Tools (e. g. Feeder 1351 shows two map frames, each at a different scale).
	

	41
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Do you expect to see text placement and editing capabilities but not posting anything to the database?
	GIS map content (e.g. cable routing and attributes, equipment/ facility placements and attributes) will not be edited using the AMT.  Cartographic data such as label placements are to be saved back to the database through AMT.
	

	42
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Would you want the two current databases (NetGIS & DAMS) to be shown separately or to show how the information can be combined from both?
	The utility is still in the process of studying the best approach to unifying our GIS.  In terms of how we will be evaluating proposals on the subject of a unified GIS, we will be looking at the degree to which the proposed solution would fit into a SOA environment, (e.g. CIM compliance).
	

	43
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	What are the requirements for the demonstration?  When will they be published?
	Requirements will be published to the top candidates, two weeks ahead of time (the time frame can be negotiated, if necessary)
	

	44
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Do you want to incorporate the feeder map as an underlay for the load flow map?
	Yes, the Loadflow map set simultaneously maps topology/connectivity as it is stored in the NetGIS database and the Loadflow database on the same map.
	

	45
	2/1/11
	2/1/11
	Were these maps plotted from DAMSView?
	No, they were plotted from a pdf
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NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT



THIS NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made as of the ___ day of ______________, 2011, between the City of Seattle and The City Light Department (“SCL”) and ________________ (“Vendor”), collectively referred to herein as “Parties.”


Recitals



WHEREAS, the Vendor requires access to confidential materials to propose a software tool to replace SCL’s existing ancillary map tool functionality that is an integral part of the SCL’s NetGIS.  This tool will be used to create maps from data stored in the NetGIS database.  


WHEREAS SCL may provide or disclose to Vendor certain sensitive documents and other information (referred to herein as “Confidential Information”) relevant to Vendor’s proposal and work for SCL; and



WHEREAS the Parties wish to enter into this Agreement in order to prevent the unauthorized disclosure and use of Confidential Information.



NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:


1. This Agreement relates to any Confidential Information provided or disclosed to Vendor in connection with Vendor’s proposal and work for SCL as described above.


2.
All documents are considered confidential unless SCL specifies otherwise by plainly marking with the words “Not Confidential.”


3.
Vendor shall treat all Confidential Information disclosed by SCL as secret and confidential and shall not, except with the prior written consent of SCL, make use of any Confidential Information for any purpose other than Vendor’s work for SCL as described above.


4.
Vendor shall not copy or reproduce any document subject to the terms of this Agreement without the prior written consent of SCL.


5.
If requested by SCL, Vendor shall immediately return to SCL any document subject to the terms of this Agreement (and any copies made thereof), and shall certify in writing Vendor’s compliance with this Agreement.


6.
Any Confidential Information, including any final or draft documents, correspondence, designs, drawings, or other documents subject to the terms of this Agreement, shall remain the property of SCL.  No rights are granted to Vendor in such Confidential Information except the limited right to use it as set forth above.


7.
The City of Seattle, City Light Department, is a Washington public entity subject to the provisions of the Washington State Public Records Act (RCW 42.56.001, et seq.).  Should Vendor receive any request – pursuant to the Public Records Act or otherwise – to disclose any Confidential Information subject to this Agreement, Vendor will immediately notify SCL.  Vendor will cooperate with any steps that SCL may choose to take to prohibit or limit disclosure of Confidential Information.


8.
This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.


City of Seattle




To:

_____________________________

_____________________________


Name:  Carmalinda Vargas


Name:   


Title:
 Sr. Buyer



Title:







Date:
__________________

Date: ________________________


